SAPPER JOHN LEONARD TEMPLE M.M.
7034 – 1st Tunnelling Company

John Leonard Temple was born in Hobart, Tasmania on 21 November, 1893 the son of William Henry and Mary Jane (nee Foster) Temple.  He had no previous military service.  
In the Police Gazette of 1911, he appeared for his crime in Woolbridge Court on 23 February, 1911 on a larceny charge for which he served 24 hours.  He was described as a craftsman, born 1894, fair complexion, slightly freckled, dark brown hair, blue eyes with a broad nose.
He was an active axeman completing in wood-chopping events like the one reported in the:
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At the recruiting depot in Queenstown, Tas on 19 October, 1916 the single twenty-one-year-old miner applied to enlist for active service abroad and passed the medical examination.  Attestation forms were completed and describe him as 173cms (5ft 8ins) tall, weighing 76.3kgs (168lbs) with a chest expansion of 93-99cms (36½-39ins) and had a dark complexion with grey eyes and brown hair.  Distinctive mark was lost a joint of left index finger.  Religion was Church of England.  Next-of-kin nominated was his father William Henry Temple of Kettering, Tas.  He took and signed the Oath of Enlistment in Claremont camp on October 26.
Acknowledgement to the departing volunteers was published in the:


Basic training commenced with the 1st Depot Battalion at Claremont camp from October 25 until 10 January, 1917.  Was transferred to the Miners’ Reinforcements at their training camp at Seymour, Victoria and allotted to the February, 1917 Reinforcements to the Tunnelling Companies.  
On 7 February, 1917 was sent to No. 5 Aust General Hospital as an invalid remaining until 15 March then returned to the Reinforcements until March 23 when he joined the Tunnelling Companies.  His rank was Sapper with the regimental number 7034.  In preparation for departure military authorities noted his Will had been lodged with them.

The transport HMAT A9 Shropshire embarked from Melbourne, Vic on May 11, 1917 with 168 members of the February Reinforcements on board.  Sapper Temple left Australian waters from Fremantle harbour and after crossing the Indian Ocean the ship docked at Durban, South Africa.  He was admitted to the ship’s hospital on 18 June for a day’s treatment and discharged to duty.  
Next Port-of-call was Capetown to refuel about June 21, followed by another stopover at an unrecorded harbour would have completed the trip-sheet. After being at sea for 70 days the voyage terminated at Plymouth, England on July 19, 1917.  The three officers and 165 other ranks were detrained to Tidworth while two were hospitalised at Plymouth then marched into the Details camp at Parkhouse for further training for the front.

The reinforcements proceeded to France on 18 August, 1917 from Southampton arriving at the Aust General Base Depot in Rouelles the following day.  

On September, 1917 marched out to the 1st Anzac Entrenching Battalion which was an advanced section of the Base Depot that organised works near the lines and through duties, usually of ten days duration, would accustom the reinforcements to war conditions before being assigned to a company in the field.

Sapper was attached on 30 October, 1917 to the 1st Tunnelling Company in the field.

Was treated for dental caries on 13 November, 1917 spending the day in the 93rd Field Ambulance.

Blue Chevrons were issued to wear on his uniform for serving twelve months overseas service. 

Leave was granted and taken on 10 February, 1918 and returned to duty on 26 February.

Disciplinary action was taken for the following:




Crime:

While on Active Service AWL from 9 a.m. 25/2/18 to 9 a.m.






26/2/18 (24 hrs)




Award:

Admonished by C.O. 1st Tun Coy



Total forfeiture:
2 day’s pay under RW 27/2/18

Sapper was taken on strength with the 1st Tunnelling Company on 27 April, 1918.

He went sick on April 27, 1918 to the 2/ 2 London Field Ambulance suffering myalgia (muscular pain) and returned to duty on April 30 and again went sick to the 3rd Canadian Stationary Hospital on 18 June with hammer toes and transferred to the 11th Stationary Hospital in Rouen being admitted with Hallux Valgus (foot condition - big toe points towards other toes).  Was moved on 21 June to the 2nd Convalescent Depot with P.U.O. (Pyrexia (fever) uncertain origin) and on 22 June was send to the 2nd Medical Board at the Base Depot at Havre then transferred to the Aust General Base Depot at Rouelles on 25 June and marched out to his unit on 5 July, 1918 arriving four days later.
Sapper was a member of the No. 4 Section that participated in the construction of a Tank Bridge over the Sambre Canal on 4 November, 1918.

The Unit Diary of the 1st Tunnelling Company recorded the following for that period as follows:


NOVEMBER, 1918



BUSIGNY



3rd
Cold and fine No. 2 Section Advance H.Q. moved to St Souplet.  Section H.Q. moved to Sh. 57B W.5.a.7.2.  25 men under Lt Thomson No. 1 Section attached to Capt. Woodward in connection with bridging the Sambre Canal.  No. 2 Section in Advance H.Q. to La Vallee Mulatre.

4th
Fine and cold – stunt started Road Report Centre opened at Molain Bridge No. 1 Capt. Woodward & party successfully constructed Tank Bridge over canal at 51.d.3.A Sh. 57A under heavy enemy fire with casualties of 4 killed and 5 wounded.

Further information on this construction is recorded in Captain O.H. Woodward’s unpublished book My War Story of the Great War:
BRIDGING THE CANAL DE LA SAMBRE DE OISE

“The Bridging was to be carried out at Lock No. 1, situated just ahead of the Village of Rejet de Beaulieu.  The 409th Field Company Royal Engineers were allotted the task of constructing light bridges, to permit the Infantry to cross, and then follow on the Bridges for light transport, while No. 4 Section was entrusted with the task of building a bridge capable of carrying Tanks.

In design the Bridge was very simple.  It consisted of two sets of 10” x 6” rolled steel joists, and in each set there were six joists placed side by side.  Thus, each set of joists in effect gave a solid girder 3 ft. wide and 10 ins. deep.  The two sets were placed at 6ft. 6in. centres, and on these would come the caterpillar treads of the Tanks.  On top of these girders a timber decking was placed, the decking board being 9 inches wide, 3 inches deep, and 10 feet long.  
On the bottom of these decking boards cleats were fitted, so that a recess was made into which fitted the two sets of joists.  A guide-rail was placed longitudinally on the decking, one on each side.  Thus with the coping stones removed the decking of the Bridge would be approximately level with the ground from the Lock.

The Lock at which the crossing was to be effected lay to the left of the Rejet de Beaulieu-L’Emertage Road.  The overhead Bridge by which this Road crossed the Canal had been destroyed, so in order to reach the Lock it was necessary to turn off sharply to the left from the Rejet de Beaulieu Road and follow the Tow Path for about 50 yards, until the Lock was reached.  Similarly, after crossing the Lock it was necessary to follow the Tow Path until the road to L’Emertage was reached.  This was a disadvantage as it meant a hair-pin bend.  To the right of the original overhead Bridge the position was difficult, as on each side of the Canal and separated from it by the Tow Path were two Reservoirs, used to adjust the water level in the Canal System.

On the German side of the Lock, and immediately facing it, were three buildings, that on the right facing it, being the Boiler house the middle one, the Pump Room, and the other the Lock-keeper’s residence.  To the left of that section of the Rejet de Beaulieu Road nearest the Canal, the ground was low-lying and comprised an orchard and old field.

The operations will be covered by Artillery, Machine Gun and Stokes Mortar Barrage, which will open the line of Canal at Zero.  The Artillery Barrage will stand on this line for 3 minutes, to allow the storming parties with Bridging material to get close up to the Lock, after which it will lift 100 yards off the Lock but continue to fall within safety on the Eastern bank of the Canal in order to cover Bridging Operations.  It will remain on this line for a further 3 minutes.  The advance of the Bridge Crews to the Lock will also be covered by a Covering Party of 2nd Royal Sussex.

Four 18 pounders have been held off to deal by direct fire, at Zero hour, with the Houses on the Lock.  We reached there at 8 p.m.  The men unloaded our Bridging material from the Pontoon Waggons, the drivers of which were then instructed to retire.  Our next task was to carry our Bridging material to a point about 300 yards from the Lock.  
Try to picture the task.  A pitch-black night with a steady fall of rain, and area of country on which none of us had ever set foot, country filled with shell holes, and about 5 tons of rolled steel joists in 20ft. lengths to be transported over a quarter of a mile before midnight, at which hour all troops were expected to be in their assembly position.  

Each of the girders weighed about 800lbs. and they were carried by 10 men, five on each side.  At this hour the area through which we had to pass was being continually swept by Artillery Fire and occasional bursts of machine gun fire.  The men had to march slowly forward, ensuring that each step was on firm ground before taking the next.  There could be no flinching when a shell burst, no matter how close.  With an 800-pound girder carried on the shoulders a false step or a faltering when a shell burst could easily cause as much damage by broken limbs as a bursting shell would inflict under all these disadvantages, the men worked without a sign of faltering, and just before midnight we had carried all our material to the forward assembly point.

At Zero plus 15 minutes, I went forward with Sergeant Hutchinson, just in time to see Major Findlay, Commanding Officer of the 409th Field Company brilliantly lead his men across the Lock by jumping across on the partly open Lock gates.  With bombs he stormed an enemy Machine Gun crew, who were located in the Boiler House.  It was a magnificent sight and for his brilliant and fearless work Major Findlay eventually was awarded the Victoria Cross.

It was not until 7.30 a.m. that Major Findlay, under whose command we were, considered it safe to commence our task.  Even at this hour the area around the Canal was subjected to terrific bombardment, but fortunately the Machine Guns close handy had been silenced.  We had to pass through the barrage in order to bring our Bridging material forward and the manner in which the men, together with Lieutenants Sawyer and Thomson, moved forward and back through this shell swept area was magnificent.  

As I mentioned before the Lock was the only spot at which a crossing could be effected, and the enemy knowing this concentrated on the area.  On either flank little shelling took place.  With Sergeant Hutchinson I crossed the Lock and we prised off the coping stone.  The launching of the first 20 ft girder across this 17ft. span was a slow job, and we had just got it across when the enemy dropped a shell practically at our feet.  It was a small high velocity shell; of the seven of us on the enemy side of the Canal, three were wounded.  Once the first girder was safely across, the work was much easier, as we were able to slide the other girders across this one.

The Tank Bridge was eventually completed 4½ hours after Zero, and as we did not start until about 2 hours after Zero, we did the work in good time.

At 11 a.m. we were ordered to retire.  We then took stock and found we had lost five killed and five wounded.  The latter had been attended to by the Stretcher Bearers.  We then located the bodies of our dead comrades, found the Padre of the 409th Field Company, and laid them to rest in the Village Cemetery of Rejet de Beaulieu.

The success of the Bridging operations was fully appreciated as the following Special Order of the Day indicates.

SPECIAL ORDER OF THE DAY
by

Major General E.P. Strickland, C.B., C.M.G., D.S.O.,

G.O.C. 1st Division.

The task that the Division was called upon to perform yesterday was one entailing the utmost forethought for every detail, the most careful and precise staff work in all branches, a thorough and precise organization in battalions of the most minute detail, and gallantry, tact, and endurance on the part of all troops engaged.  The complete success of the operations is very greatly due to the skill, ability, rapidity and completeness with which the bridging arrangements were completed and perfected.

I wish to pay special tribute to Lt Colonel C.E.P. Sankey D.S.O., his Field Company Commander, and the Section of the First Australian Tunnelling Company for the part they have played in these operations.  The cool gallantry with which they placed the bridges in position under heavy fire after long and arduous hours of labour was magnificent.  They have very worthily upheld the very high traditions of the Royal Engineers.

I cannot sufficiently express my admiration and thanks to all branches of the staff and to all branches of the staff and to all units in the Division for their unsurpassed efforts culminating in as fine a military achievement as any troops could have carried out.

The Division as a whole has every reason to be more than proud of their record, and they could not do more than uphold, as they have done, the brilliant records of the First Division of the British Army.

Signed:








E.P. Strickland.”

Sapper Savage was one of eleven men recommended for the Military Medal for his bravery in the field on 4 November, 1918 from the 1st Tunnelling Company.

He was with his unit when Peace was declared a week later and the Tunnelling Companies remained on the front as part of the Army of Occupation assisting with rehabilitation of their district by clearing roads and bridges of booby traps and delayed action mines left by the enemy.

On 14 December, 1918 news came through that he had been awarded the Military Medal. 
He went sick on 10 January, 1919 to the 45th Field Ambulance with scabies (a skin irritation caused by Itch Mite whose eggs are laid under the skin’s outer layer) and discharged to his unit on January 22.

Further leave from France was granted from 8-22 February, 1919.  While on leave became ill and was admitted to the 1st Aust Dermatological Hospital at Bulford for treatment of a social disease.  After twenty-six days curative care was sent to the Convalescent Training Depot at Parkhouse awaiting disposal on March 24.

On 13 May, 1919 marched in to No. 1 Group camp to await his voyage home.
After demobilisation Sapper Temple embarked on 31 May, 1919 on board H.T. Aeneas for the journey home.  Base Records advised his father on 24 June he was returning home.  

His name was among those listed in the:

The transport docked in Melbourne (3rd Military district) on 12 July, 1919.  News of their home-coming was published in the:
The Tasmanians returned home to Hobart.
Military Discharge was issued in Hobart (6th Military district) on 7 November, 1919 on termination of his period of enlistment.
On 17 December, 1919 the 6th Military District advised Base Records on the arrival and discharge of Sapper Temple and forwarded his medical documents and service records.
His Will was returned to the 6th Military district on 4 December, 1919.

The British War Medal (7312) and the Victory Medal (7095) were issued to Sapper 7034 John Leonard Temple, 1st Tunnelling Company to wear with the Military Medal for serving his country.

Base Records wrote to his father on 29 November, 1919 forwarding a copy of the extract appearing in the Third Supplement, No. 31430, to the London Gazette dated 3rd July, 1919 relating to conspicuous services rendered by this member of the Aust Imperial Force.
AWARDED THE MILITARY MEDAL

HIS MAJESTY THE KING has been graciously pleased to approve of the award of the Military Medal

for bravery in the field to the undermentioned

No. 7034 Sapper J.L. TEMPLE

They further advised this had been promulgated in the Commonwealth of Australia Gazette No. 119, dated 17 October, 1919.
The Military Medal was forwarded on 30 January, 1920 to the Commandant 6th Military District for distribution to the soldier as soon as possible.

He was a labourer in Kettering, Tas in 1928 and had moved to Sydney as was residing at 46 Lauder Street, Redfern and a miner in 1930 then moved to 10 Queen Steet, Ashfield where he remained.  In 1934 he was at 85 Watkin Street, West Sydney with the occupation of miner.
On 13 June, 1936 he wrote to Base Records from 1 Rochford Street, Erskineville requesting a duplicate copy of his discharge.  He had applied before but sent it to the wrong address.  He would also like a record of his service.  If he could get it, he could get a job at his old employment and gave his service particulars.
He completed a Statutory Declaration and declared at Newtown on 15 July, 1936 that he lost his discharge.

Base Records forwarded him a Statement of his Service on 23 July, 1936. 

By 1937 his residence was at 540 Bourke Street, East Sydney.

During World War II he re-enlisted for service from Ashfield in Sydney on 13 September, 1940 giving his birthdate as 8 April, 1895 and born in Hobart.  Next-of-kin nominated was May Thomas.  Private N78217 was discharged on 1 September, 1941from the 2nd Garrison Battalion.
A copy of his service records were requested by the Hobart Branch of the Repatriation Commission from Base Records and forwarded on 5 February, 1952.

Returned to Tasmania and listed there in 1954 at 163 Murray Street, Hobart with the occupation of miner.

John Leonard Temple, late of Kingston, passed away on 17 November, 1975 aged 82 years.  Burial took place on November 21 in the Church of England portion of Cornelian Bay Cemetery within section TT in grave no. 143, location A.
In the Hobart Garden of Remembrance, a plaque commemorating his service can be located on Wall 2, Row C.  It reads:
AIF

7034 Sapper

J.L. Temple M.M.

1st Tunnelling Company

17-11-1975
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Footnote:  Further information on the Bridging of the Sambre Canal is covered on this website under:

 Western Front / 1ATC / Sambre Canal – 4th November 1918
North Western Advocate and the Emu Bay Times Monday February 28, 1916:


HANDICAP CHOP – ONE FOOT STANDING BLOCKS


J.L. Temple, 24 sec.;									Article abridged





Mercury (Hobart) Saturday October 28, 1916:


RECRUITING – TASMANIA


The following are the names of the men (62) who entered camp yesterday:


J.L. Temple, miner Kingborough							Article abridged





Examiner (Launceston) Tuesday July 22, 1919:


MEN EN ROUTE


The attached list of troops are shortly returning from abroad per Aeneas:


Spr. J.L. Temple, M.M., 1st Tunnellers, Kettering;					


Article abridged








The Age Monday July 14, 1919:


TROOPS PER AENEAS LANDED


Though timed to land at Port Melbourne at 2 p.m. on Saturday, troops arriving by the transport Aeneas, to the number of 300, reached the pier a little earlier, and by 2.20 p.m. the first of the men were at Sturt-street undergoing medical examination.  The usual welcome by Brigadier-General Brand, State Commandant, and advice on how to proceed, by Captain E.M. Wright, were tendered to the soldiers on landing, and they were given a hearty welcome in the streets of the metropolis and by relatives and friends at the “finalisations” depot.  The Aeneas carried troops for New South Wales and Queensland, who were sent on special trains to their respective States immediately upon quitting the transport.








